
 

 

 

Rutland County Council              
 
Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP 
Telephone 01572 722577  
Email: democraticservices@rutland.gov.uk 

        
 
Ladies and Gentlemen, 
 
A meeting of the PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE will be held in the 
Council Chamber, Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP on Tuesday, 22nd 
August, 2023 commencing at 7.00 pm when it is hoped you will be able to attend. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
Mark Andrews 
Chief Executive 
 
Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, 
take photographs and use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that 
is open to the public. A protocol on this facility is available at www.rutland.gov.uk/my-
council/have-your-say/ 
 
Although social distancing requirements have been lifted there is still limited 
available for members of the public. If you would like to reserve a seat please 
contact the Democratic Services Team at democraticservices@rutland.gov.uk  
meeting will also be available for viewing via Zoom at: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86396251422   
 
 

A G E N D A 
  
1) APOLOGIES  
 To receive any apologies from Members. 

  
2) MINUTES  
 To confirm the minutes of the Planning and Licensing Committee held on 18th 

July 2023 and receive an update on any actions agreed in the minutes of the 
previous meeting. 
(Pages 3 - 10) 

  
3) DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
 In accordance with the Regulations, Members are invited to declare any 

disclosable interests under the Code of Conduct and the nature of those 
interests in respect of items on this Agenda and/or indicate if Section 106 of 

Public Document Pack

http://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-council/have-your-say/
http://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-council/have-your-say/
mailto:democraticservices@rutland.gov.uk
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86396251422


 

 

the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them. 
  

4) PETITIONS, DEPUTATIONS AND QUESTIONS  
 Requests to speak on planning applications will be subject to the Council’s 

Public Speaking Scheme for Planning Applications. 
  
To request to speak regarding a planning application, please send an email to 
democraticservices@rutland.gov.uk  

  
5) PLANNING APPLICATIONS  
 To receive Report No.119/2023 from the Strategic Director of Places. 

(Pages 11 - 14) 
  

a) 2023/0577/FUL  
(Pages 15 - 34) 
 

 

 
6) APPEALS REPORT  
 To receive Report No.120/2023 from the Strategic Director of Places. 

(Pages 35 - 38) 
  

7) ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS  
 To consider any other urgent business approved in writing by the Chief 

Executive and Chairman of the Committee. 
  

8) DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 Tuesday, 19th September 2023. 

 
---oOo--- 

 
DISTRIBUTION 
MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE: 
 

Councillor N Begy (Chair) Councillor A Brown (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor G Clifton Councillor K Corby 
Councillor S McRobb Councillor K Payne 
Councillor R Payne Councillor T Smith 
Councillor A West Councillor D Wilby 
Councillor C Wise Councillor H Zollinger-Ball 

 

https://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s23324/Part%205e%20-%20Codes%20and%20Protocols%20-%20Public%20Speaking%20Scheme%20for%20Planning%20Applications%20May%202022.pdf
mailto:democraticservices@rutland.gov.uk


Rutland County Council            
 
Catmose   Oakham   Rutland   LE15 6HP. 
Telephone 01572 722577 Email: governance@rutland.gov.uk 

  
 
 

Minutes of the MEETING of the PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE held in 
the Council Chamber, Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP on Tuesday, 18th July, 
2023 at 7.00 pm 

 
 
PRESENT:  Councillor N Begy (Chair) Councillor A Brown (Vice-Chair) 
 Councillor G Clifton Councillor K Corby 
 Councillor A West Councillor S McRobb 
 Councillor K Payne Councillor R Payne 
 Councillor T Smith Councillor D Wilby 
 Councillor H Zollinger-Ball  
 
ABSENT:  Councillor C Wise  
 
OFFICERS 
PRESENT: 

Justin Johnson 
Joe Mitson 

Development Manager 
Planning Officer 

 
 

Sherrie Grant 
Nicholas Thrower 

Planning Solicitor 
Principal Planning Officer 

 
 

Robyn Green 
David Ebbage 

Highways Engineer 
Democratic Services Officer 

 
IN 
ATTENDANCE: 

Councillor P Browne Portfolio Holder 

 
 

1 APOLOGIES  
 
Apologies were received from Councillor C Wise. 
 

2 MINUTES  
 
Consideration was given to the minutes of the meetings held on 13th June 2023.  
  
RESOLVED  
  

a)   That the minutes of the meeting on the 13th June 2023 be APPROVED. 
 

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
 
Councillor A Brown declared a non-pecuniary interest in Agenda Items 5 and 6 as he 
was previously the Chairman of Rutland Countryside Access Forum where both 
footpaths were discussed but he confirmed he came to the meeting with an open 
mind. 
  

3

Agenda Item 2



 
Councillor A Brown declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 7b, Planning 
Applications, application 2022/0449/FUL as he knew the applicant as a local farmer 
but confirmed he came to the meeting with an open mind. 
  
Councillor West declared a personal interest in item 7b, Planning Applications, 
application 2022/0449/FUL as the applicant was her brother therefore would leave the 
meeting at that point. 
 

4 PETITIONS, DEPUTATIONS AND QUESTIONS  
 
In accordance with the Planning and Licensing Committee Public Speaking Scheme, 
the following deputations were received on item 5, Planning Applications: 
  
In relation to 2022/0254/FUL, Steve Machen spoke as a member of the public 
supporting the recommendation, Kevin Atkinson spoke as a member of Morcott Parish 
Council and Councillor Andrew Johnson spoke as a Ward Member. 
  
In relation to 2022/0449/FUL, James MacCartney spoke as the applicant. 

 
---oOo--- 

At 7.05pm Councillor A West left the meeting 
---oOo--- 

 
7b 2022/0449/FUL  

 
Nick Thrower, Principal Planning Officer, introduced the application and gave an 
executive summary, recommending approval subject to conditions outlined in the 
report. 
  
Prior to the debate the Committee received deputations from James MacCartney who 
spoke as the applicant. The Committee also had the opportunity to ask questions of 
the speaker. 
  
It was moved by the Chairman and seconded that the application be approved subject 
to the conditions in the report. Upon being put to the vote with eleven votes in favour, 
the motion was unanimously carried. 
  
RESOLVED 
  

a)    That the application 2022/0449/FUL be APPROVED subject to the conditions 
outlined by the Planning Officer. 
  

b)   The full list of reasons can be found on the planning application page of the 
Council’s website 

  
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/view-
planningapplications-and-decisions/ 
 

---oOo--- 
At 7.18pm Councillor A West re-joined the meeting 

---oOo--- 
 
 

4

https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/view-planningapplications-and-decisions/
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/view-planningapplications-and-decisions/


 
5 PROPOSED DIVERSION OF PUBLIC FOOTPATH D79  

 
Report No.110/2023 was introduced by Stuart Crook, Highways Asset Management 
and Policy Manager. 
  
The application was submitted on 27th of September 2021 by John Gregory of Wright 
Hassall on behalf of Whissendine Farms Limited to divert part of public footpath D79 
in the parish of Whissendine.  
  
The application was made under section 119 of the Highways Act 1980 (the 1980 
Act), which gave the highway authority (Rutland County Council) the power to make 
orders to divert footpaths, bridleways, or restricted byways in the interests of the 
owner, lessee, or occupier of land where it was expedient. 
 
It was clarified during debate to Members that it was the Highways Authority 
responsibility to maintain all services of highways including footpaths where naturally 
occurring vegetation grew.  
  
The recommendations of Report No. 110/2023 were moved by the Chairman and 
seconded, upon being put to the vote, with eleven votes in favour the motion was 
unanimously carried. 
  
RESOLVED 
  
That the Committee: 
  

a) APPROVED the application to divert public footpath D79 and authorised 
legal services to make an order under section 119 of the Highways Act. 

 
6 APPLICATION FOR DMMO (REF:RCCDC-M17)  

 
Report No.111/2023 was introduced by Stuart Crook, Highways Asset Management 
and Policy Manager. 
  
The report dealt with an application to add a public footpath between Main Street in 
Barrow and Sheep Dyke in Cottesmore to the Definitive Map and Statement (DMS) for 
Rutland and sought committee approval to make a Definitive Map Modification Order 
(DMMO). 
  
The Ward Member through the Chairman wanted to thank the Ways Around 
Cottesmore group for the hard work and effort that had gone into this footpath. 
  
The recommendations of Report No. 111/2023 were moved by the Chairman and 
seconded, upon being put to the vote, with eleven votes in favour the motion was 
unanimously carried. 
  
RESOLVED 
  
That the Committee: 
  

a) Considered the application APPROVED the making of a Definitive Map 
Modification Order (DMMO) to add the footpath shown ABC on the draft 
order map at Appendix 1 to the definitive map and statement for Rutland. 

5



 
 

7 PLANNING APPLICATIONS  
 
Report No.108/2023 was received from the Strategic Director of Places. 
   
Item 7a – 2022/0254/FUL – Conversion of the former White Horse Inn public house to 
residential use including demolition of existing single storey elements and the erection 
of a two-storey rear extension, demolition of the existing outbuildings and the erection 
of 4 no. new dwellings with associated infrastructure.  
  
(Parish: Morcott; Ward: Braunston & Martinshorpe) 
  
Item 7b – 2022/0449/FUL - Construction of 4 bed farmworkers dwelling to allow family 
member to live on site. 
  
(Parish: Braunston in Rutland; Ward: Braunston & Martinshorpe) 
  
Item 7c – 2023/0146/RG3 - Regulation 3 application for variation of condition No. 3 
(permission expiry) on Planning Permission ref: 2020/1459/RG3 to allow permanent 
use of the No. 1 court area of Oakham Castle as a cafe. 2020/1459/RG3 - Regulation 
3 application for change of use of the Court number 1 room, kitchen (total 55 square 
meters) and courtyard outdoors space (40 square meters) at Oakham Castle for a 
cafe. 
  
(Parish: Oakham; Ward: Oakham North East) 
  
Item 7d – 2023/0388/FUL - Replacement oak gate posts and 2 1.2m high oak gates. 
  
(Parish: Exton and Horn; Ward: Exton) 
  
Item 7e – 2023/0389/LBA - Replacement oak gate posts and 2 1.2m high oak gates. 
  
(Parish: Exton and Horn; Ward: Exton) 
 

7a 2022/0254/FUL  
 
Joe Mitson, Planning Officer, introduced the application and gave an executive 
summary, recommending approval subject to conditions outlined in the report. 
  
Prior to the debate the Committee received deputations from Steve Machen who 
spoke as a member of the public supporting the recommendation, Kevin Atkinson who 
spoke as a member of Morcott Parish Council and Councillor Andrew Johnson who 
spoke as a Ward Member. 
  
Through questioning, it couldn’t be confirmed if the pub had been put on the market 
for sale previously. Members felt that further evidence of marketing would help with 
their decision making. 
  
It was confirmed by officers in Planning Policy that the number of dwellings proposed 
on the application did not meet the threshold for the need to provide affordable 
housing. 
  

6



 
Members were concerned with the impact of removing a community facility from the 
village. 
  
Officers explained to Members that with the comments made around the marketing of 
the pub, where an application like this would be assessed by officers, it would be 
expected to ask for marketing when I pub had been vacant for 12months, the White 
Horse Inn had been vacant for over 10 years. 
  
It was moved by Chairman and seconded that members agreed with the officers 
recommendation. Upon being put to the vote, with 5 in favour and 6 against, the 
motion was lost. 
  
It was moved by Councillor West and seconded that the application be deferred and 
for it to be brought back to a future meeting. The reasons for deferral were: 
  

-     To provide further evidence of the marketing of the pub over the past 12 
months, the levels of that marketing and if any interest was received. 

  
This was seconded and upon being put to the vote, with 5 votes in favour and 5 
against, the Chair had the casting vote, the Chair voted in favour of the deferral to 
make it 6 votes in favour and 5 against, the motion was carried. 
  
RESOLVED 
  

a) That planning application 2022/0254/FUL be DEFERRED to a future meeting. 
 

7c 2023/0146/RG3  
 
Nick Thrower, Principal Planning Officer, introduced the application and gave an 
executive summary, recommending approval subject to conditions outlined in the 
report. 
  
It was moved by the Chairman and seconded that the application be approved subject 
to the conditions in the report. Upon being put to the vote with eleven votes in favour, 
the motion was unanimously carried. 
  
RESOLVED 
  

a)   That the application 2023/0146/RG3 be APPROVED subject to the conditions 
outlined by the Planning Officer. 
  

b)   The full list of reasons can be found on the planning application page of the 
Council’s website 

  
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/view-
planningapplications-and-decisions/ 
 

7d 2023/0388/FUL  
 
Joe Mitson, Planning Officer, introduced the application and gave an executive 
summary, recommending approval subject to conditions outlined in the report. 
  

7

https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/view-planningapplications-and-decisions/
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/view-planningapplications-and-decisions/


 
It was moved by Councillor Clifton and seconded that the application be approved 
subject to the conditions in the report. Upon being put to the vote with eleven votes in 
favour, the motion was unanimously carried. 
  
RESOLVED 
  

a)    That the application 2023/0388/FUL be APPROVED subject to the conditions 
outlined by the Planning Officer. 
  

b)   The full list of reasons can be found on the planning application page of the 
Council’s website 

  
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/view-
planningapplications-and-decisions/ 
 

7e    2023/0389/LBA  
 
Joe Mitson, Planning Officer, introduced the application and gave an executive 
summary, recommending approval subject to conditions outlined in the report. 
  
It was moved by Councillor Clifton and seconded that the application be approved 
subject to the conditions in the report. Upon being put to the vote with eleven votes in 
favour, the motion was unanimously carried. 
  
RESOLVED 
  

a)   That the application 2022/0389/LBA be APPROVED subject to the conditions 
outlined by the Planning Officer. 
  

b)   The full list of reasons can be found on the planning application page of the 
Council’s website 

  
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/view-
planningapplications-and-decisions/ 
 

8 APPEALS REPORT  
 
Report No. 109/2023 was received from the Strategic Director for Places. Justin 
Johnson, Development Manager, presented the report which listed for Members’ 
information the appeals received since the last ordinary meeting of the Planning & 
Licensing Committee and summarised the decisions made.  
  
RESOLVED 
 
a)    That the contents of the report be NOTED. 
 

9 ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS  
 
There were no items of urgent business. 
 

10 DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
Tuesday, 8th August 2023. 

8

https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/view-planningapplications-and-decisions/
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/view-planningapplications-and-decisions/
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/view-planningapplications-and-decisions/
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/view-planningapplications-and-decisions/


 
 

---oOo--- 
The Chairman declared the meeting closed at 9.19pm. 

---oOo--- 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



Maintaining and promoting high standards of conduct 

Declaring interests at meetings 
Familiarise yourself with the Councillor Code of Conduct which can be 
found in Part 6 of the Council’s Constitution 

Before the meeting, read the agenda and reports to see if the matters to be 
discussed at the meeting concern your interests 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Bias and predetermination are common law concepts. If they 
affect you, your participation in the meeting may call into question 
the decision arrived at on the item. 

 

Bias Test Predetermination Test 

In all the circumstances, 
would it lead a fair minded 
and informed observer to 
conclude that there was a 

real possibility or a real 
danger that the decision 

maker was biased 

 
At the time of making the 

decision, did the decision 
maker have a closed mind? 

Selflessness 
Councillors should act solely in 
terms of the public interest 

Integrity 
Councillors must avoid placing 
themselves under any 
obligation to people or 
organisations that might try 
inappropriately to influence 
them in their work. They 
should not act or take decisions 
in order to gain financial or 
other material benefits for 
themselves, their family or 
their friends. They must 
declare and resolve any 
interests and relationships 

Objectivity 
Councillors must act and take 
decisions impartially, fairly and 
on merit, using the best 
evidence and without 
discrimination or bias 

Accountability 
Councillors are accountable to 
the public for their decisions 
and actions and must submit 
themselves to the scrutiny 
necessary to ensure this 

Openness 
Councillors should act and take 
decisions in an open and 
transparent manner. 
Information should not be 
withheld from the public unless 
there are clear and lawful 
reasons for doing so 

Honesty & 
Integrity 

Councillors should act with 
honesty and integrity and 
should not place themselves in 
situations where their honesty 
and integrity may be questioned 

Leadership 
Councillors should exhibit 
these principles in their own 
behaviour. They should 
actively promote and robustly 
support the principles and be 
willing to challenge poor 
behaviour wherever it occurs 

 

 

 

 

 

 

What are the principles of bias and pre-determination and 
how do they affect my participation in the meeting?

Y N

I have a DPI and cannot take part without a
dispensation

Does the matter directly relate to the
finances or wellbeing of one of my Other 
Registerable Interests (ORIs) (set out in 

Table 2)?

Y N

I have an ORI and must disclose it. I may
speak as a member of the public but not 
discuss or vote and must leave the room

Does it directly relate to the finances or
wellbeing of me, a relative or a close 

associate

Y
I have a NRI and must disclose it. I may speak 
as a member of the public but not discuss or 

vote and must leave the room

N
Does it affect the finances or wellbeing of 
me, a relative or a close associate or any of 

my ORIs?

Y N

Am I or they affected to a greater extent than
most people? And would a reasonable person 

think my judgement is clouded
I have no interest to disclose

Y N

I have an interest and must disclose it. I may
speak as a member of the public but not 
discuss or vote and must leave the room

I have no interest to disclose

Does the matter directly relate to one of my Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) (set out in Table 1)

For more information or advice please contact 
monitoringofficer@rutland.gov.uk

If a councillor appears to be biased or to have 
predetermined their decision, they must NOT participate 

in the meeting.

11

Agenda Item 5

mailto:monitoringofficer@rutland.gov.uk


REPORT NO: 119/2023 
 
 
 
 

PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

PLANNING APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE 
PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR OF PLACES

 

12



Rutland County Council 
 
Planning & Licensing Committee – 22 August 2023 
Index of Committee Items 
 
Item 
 
 
1 

Application  
No 
 
2023/0577/FUL 

Applicant, Location & 
Description 
 
Langton Homes Ltd 
Land on the North side of Cold 
Overton Road, Langham 
Section 73 for Variation of 
Condition No. 24 (Landscaped 
Buffer to the Northern Boundary 
with The Glade) on planning 
permission ref: 2021/1423/MAO 
(Erection of up to 50 no. 
dwellings with associated 
access, highways, open space 
and drainage infrastructure (all 
matters reserved except 
access)).  The variation will 
reduce the minimum landscaped 
buffer from 20m to 10m. 
 
 

Recommendation 
 
  
Approval 

Page 
 
 
15-34 
 

 

13



This page is intentionally left blank



 
2023/0577/FUL 

 
 

 
 

© Crown copyright and database rights [2013] 
Ordnance Survey [100018056] 

 

Rutland County Council 
 
Catmose, 
Oakham, 
Rutland 
LE15 6HP 

 
 

15

Agenda Item 5a



This page is intentionally left blank



Application: 2023/0577/FUL ITEM 1  
Proposal: Section 73 for Variation of Condition No. 24 (Landscaped Buffer 

to the Northern Boundary with The Glade) on planning 
permission ref: 2021/1423/MAO (Erection of up to 50 no. 
dwellings with associated access, highways, open space and 
drainage infrastructure (all matters reserved except access)). 
The variation will reduce the minimum landscaped buffer from 
20m to 10m. 

Address: Land On The North Side Of, Cold Overton Road, Langham, 
Rutland 

Applicant:  Langton Homes Parish Langham 
Agent: Andrew Granger & Co. Ward Langham 
Reason for presenting to Committee: Ward Member Referral 
Date of Committee: 22 August 2023 
Determination Date: 1 September 2023 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Outline permission for the housing development has previously been approved, and 
the current application seeks to reduce the minimum landscaped buffer along the 
northern boundary of the site from 20 metres to 10 metres. Objections have been 
received from local residents and the Parish. Notwithstanding this, the 10 metre buffer 
zone originally proposed by the development is considered to be acceptable. It would 
provide acceptable separation distances between the new and existing dwellings, and 
would not adversely affect the biodiversity of the wildlife corridor. The overall quality 
of the development would not be materially diminished as a result of the change 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
APPROVAL, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local 
Planning Authority before the expiration of three years from the date of this 
permission. 
Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 

 
2. The development shall be begun before the expiration of two years from the 

date of approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved. 
Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 

3. No development shall be commenced until plans and particulars of "the 
reserved matters" referred to in the above conditions relating to the 
appearance, landscaping, layout and scale have been submitted to and 
approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.  The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
Reason: The application as submitted does not provide sufficient particulars 
for consideration of these details. 
 

17



4. The Reserved Matters shall provide for a maximum of 50 dwellings. 
REASON - The provision of a greater number of dwellings would reduce the 
space available for open space, sustainable drainage, ecological interests and 
result in a cramped form of development and in accordance with Policies SP5 
and SP15. 
 

5. The Reserved Matters shall be based upon the following plans and 
documents: 

• Drainage Strategy Plan ADC2813/DR/051 P2 contained the ADC 
Report ADC2813-RP-C 

• Proposed Access Junction Layout plan ADC2813-DR-001-P3. 
• The recommendations for biodiversity enhancements in sections 4 

and 5 of the Feasibility Study For Biodiversity Net Gain by Fauna 
Forest Ecology dated February 2022. 

                and shall have regard to: 
• The revised Illustrative Master Plan Ref. GL1655 SK1, received on 

25 February 2022. 
• The Design & Access Statement, Goldby & Luck, November 2021. 

REASON - To ensure that the final development accords with the parameters 
set out in the outline application has an acceptable relationship with the 
adjoining properties, provides adequate open space and a sustainable 
drainage scheme and in the interests of proper planning. 

 
6. No development shall commence until details of existing and proposed levels 

of the site, finished floor levels and identifying all areas of cut or fill, have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
development shall be completed in accordance with the agreed scheme before 
any dwelling is first occupied. 
Reason: To ensure that the relations hip of the proposed dwellings to each 
other and to adjacent dwellings is acceptable, in the interests of residential 
amenity. 
 

7. No development shall take place until precise details of the provision, siting, 
design and materials of screen walls and fences have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved screen 
walls and fences shall be erected prior to the dwellings to which they relate 
being first occupied and thereafter be retained in the approved form. 
Reason: To ensure that appropriate boundaries are installed in the interests of 
visual and residential amenity. 
 

8. The landscaping scheme to be submitted as part of the reserved matters shall 
be designed in accordance with the Feasibility Study For Biodiversity Net Gain 
by Fauna Forest Ecology dated February 2022. 
Reason: To ensure that the development provides the requisite increase in 
biodiversity for the site. 
 

9. All changes in ground levels, hard landscaping, planting, seeding or turfing 
shown on the approved landscaping details, approved in Condition 3 above, 
shall be carried out during the first planting and seeding season (October - 
March inclusive) following the commencement of the development or in such 
other phased arrangement as may be agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  Any trees or shrubs which, within a period of 5 years of being 

18



planted die are removed or seriously damaged or seriously diseased shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species. 
REASON - To ensure that the landscaping is carried out at the appropriate 
time and is properly maintained, in the interests of residential and visual 
amenity. 

 
10. No development shall take place within the application site until the applicant 

or developer has secured the implementation of a programme of 
archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation 
which has been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
Reason - To allow proper investigation and recording of the site, which is 
potentially of archaeological and historic significance. 
 

11. No development shall take place until the existing trees on the site, agreed 
with the Local Planning Authority for inclusion in the scheme of landscaping / 
shown to be retained on the approved plan, have been protected by the 
erection of temporary protective fences in accordance with BS5837:2012 and 
of a height, size and in positions which shall previously have been agreed, in 
writing, with the Local Planning Authority.  The protective fences shall be 
retained throughout the duration of building and engineering works in the 
vicinity of the trees to be protected.  Within the areas agreed to be protected, 
the existing ground level shall be neither raised nor lowered, and no materials 
or temporary building or surplus soil shall be placed or stored there. If any 
trenches for services are required in the protected areas, they shall be 
excavated and back-filled by hand and any tree roots encountered with a 
diameter of 5cm or more shall be left unsevered. 
REASON- The trees are important features in the area and this condition is 
imposed to make sure that they are properly protected while building works 
take place on the site, in accordance with Policy SP15. 

 
12. The development hereby permitted will be restricted to a maximum discharge 

rate of 5l/s for the whole site in accordance with the Flood Risk Drainage 
Strategy Addendum Version 3. 
Reason: To ensure that there is no flood risk off the site resulting from the 
proposed development. 
 

13. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until full details of the 
design, implementation, maintenance and management have been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. Those details shall 
include: 
a) Information about the temporary storage facilities, means of access for 
maintenance, the methods employed to delay and control surface water 
discharged from the site, and the measures taken to prevent flooding and 
pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters; 
b) Any works required off-site to ensure adequate discharge of surface 
water without causing flooding or pollution (which should include refurbishment 
of existing culverts and headwalls or removal of unused culverts and ditch 
clearance where relevant); 
c) Flood water exceedance routes, both on and off site; 

19



d) A full capacity and condition assessment of the existing ditches from the 
discharge point, upstream for 500m and downstream to through Langham 
Brook to Whissendine Brook;  
e) A timetable for implementation; 
f) Site investigation and test results to confirm infiltrations rates; and  
g) A detailed management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the 
development which shall include the arrangements for adoption by an 
appropriate public body or statutory undertaker, management and 
maintenance by a Residents' Management Company or any other 
arrangements to secure the operation of the surface water drainage scheme 
throughout its lifetime. 
Reason : To ensure that the proposed development can be adequately 
drained whilst ensuring there is no flood risk on or off the site resulting from the 
proposed development. 
 
 

 
14. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until Land Drainage 

Consent has been granted for the outfall into the adjacent ordinary water 
course. 
REASON: To prevent the increased risk of flooding off-site resulting from the 
proposed development. 

 
15. Car parking including garages and turning shall be provided in accordance 

with the approved layout plans prior to the first occupation of the dwellings to 
which it relates. It shall thereafter be retained and not used for any other 
purpose other than the parking and turning of vehicles. 
Reason: In order to ensure that sufficient car parking and turning remains 
available on site. 
 

16. Any new trees located within 5m of the existing or proposed public highway 
must be planted with root-protection, details of which must be approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
 

17. All vehicular and pedestrian accesses will be designed to prevent the 
discharge of surface water from the development onto the existing or proposed 
public highway. 
Reason: To prevent hazards caused by water flowing onto the highway and to 
avoid the formation of ice on the highway in the interest of highway safety. 
 

18. The carriageway of the proposed principal junction with the existing public 
highway shall be constructed up to and including at least road base level or be 
constructed as a temporary access and be available for use prior to the 
commencement of any development including the delivery of materials. 
Reason: To ensure that the junction is available for use at the outset in the 
interests of highway safety. 
 

19. No dwelling shall be occupied until the access road or driveway linking that 
dwelling to the public highway has been completed to a minimum of base 
course level and shared surfaces and footways/cycleways shall be completed 
to surface course level. In the event any of the dwellings will be occupied prior 

20



to the carriageway serving that property being fully surfaced then a timetable 
and phasing plan for completing the roads shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The carriageways shall thereafter be 
completed in accordance with the approved timetable and phasing plan. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 

 
20. Prior to first occupation of any dwelling, vehicle to vehicle visibility splays of 

2.4m x 25m at internal junctions, vehicle to pedestrian visibility splays of 2m x 
2m at all vehicle accesses and forward visibility splays of 25m shall be 
provided in accordance with the details shown on plan the approved plan. 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety. 

 
21. The developer shall carry out a joint pre-condition highway survey for the full 

extent of highway including verges with the Local Highway Authority 500m 
either side of the proposed access on Cold Overton Road before site traffic 
commences. The results of the inspection will be provided by way of a 
photographic survey by the developer to the Local Highway Authority. A similar 
inspection will take place on completion of the development to assess any 
damage and remediation required. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
 

22. No development shall take place until a Construction Method Statement has 
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. 
The approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction 
period. The Statement shall provide for: 

• the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors  
• loading and unloading of plant and materials  
• storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development  
• the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including 

decorative displays and facilities for public viewing, where 
appropriate  

• wheel washing facilities  
• measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction  
• a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition 

and construction works  
• Hours of working on site 

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in a manner that 
minimises disruption to the highway network, in the interests of highway safety 
and in accordance with Policy SP15. 
 

23. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
recommendations in Chapters 4 and 5 of the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal 
Report by Fauna Forest Ecology, dated November 2021. 
Reason: To ensure that the ecological interests of the site are protected during 
and after the development. 

 
24. Notwithstanding the illustrative Masterplan, the development shall provide a 

minimum 10 metre landscaped buffer to the northern boundary with The 
Glade. No public access shall be allowed in this area. 
Reason: To protect the amenities of the residents to the north and to provide 
an area that can be used to contribute to biodiversity. 

 

21



Informatives: 
 

Rutland County Council became a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging 
Authority on 1st March 2016.  Full details of CIL are available on the Council’s 
website www.rutland.gov.uk .  
  
This development may be subject to a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
liability.  This will be assessed at the time the reserved matters application is 
submitted. 

 
Street Naming & Numbering - Section 17 - 18 Public Health Act 1925 
The development will result in the creation of new street(s) and/or new dwelling(s) 
and/or allocate appropriate street names and property numbers. This procedure is 
applicable to the sub-division of premises, which will provide multiple occupancy 
for both residential and commercial buildings. Before development is commenced 
an application should be made, allowing 8 weeks to complete. Details are 
available on our website at the following link:- https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-
services/planning-and-building-control/planning/street-name-and-numbering/  
Should you require assistance please email snn@rutland.gov.uk. Please note this 
is not a function covered by your planning application but is a statutory obligation 
of the Local Authority, and must be dealt with as a separate matter following 
planning approval. 
 
Utility Services - Section 50 NRSWA 1991 
The development is likely to involve works within the public highway in order to 
provide services to the site or which will affect existing services. Such works must 
be licenced under the New Roads and Street Works Act 1991. It is essential that, 
prior to the commencement of such works, adequate time be allowed in the 
development programme for; the issue of the appropriate licence, approval of 
temporary traffic management and booking of road space. Further details can be 
obtained from our website and any queries can be emailed to 
highways@rutland.gov.uk. 
 
Off-site Highway Works - Section 278 Highways Act 1980 
The development involves extensive works within the public highway. Such works 
must be the subject of a legal agreement under Section 278 of the Highways Act 
1980.  It is essential that prior to the commencement of the highway works, 
adequate time is allowed in the development programme for; approval by the 
council of the design, contractors, technical vetting, safety audits, approval of 
temporary traffic management, booking of road space for off-site highway and 
service works and the completion of the legal agreement. Works must not 
commence until the legal agreement is in place and road space booked. Please 
email highways@rutland.gov.uk for further details. 
 
Penalty for Depositing on the Highway - Section 148, Sub-Sec C Highways Act 
1980 
It is an offence to deposit anything including building materials or debris on a 
highway which may cause interruption to any user of the highway (including 
footways and verges). In the event that a person is found guilty of this offence, a 
penalty may be imposed in the form of a fine. It is the responsibility of the 
developer and contractor(s) to ensure that no building materials or debris are 

22



placed on or remain within the highway during or after the construction period. 
 
Removal of Deposits on the Highway - Section 149 Highways Act 1980 
If anything is so deposited on a highway as to constitute a nuisance, the Local 
Highway Authority may by notice require the person who deposited it there to 
remove it forthwith and if he fails to comply the Local Highway Authority may make 
a complaint to a Magistrates Court for a Removal and Disposal Order. In the event 
that the deposit is considered to constitute a danger, the Local Highway Authority 
may remove the deposit forthwith and recover reasonable expenses from the 
person who made the deposit. It is the responsibility of the developer and 
contractor(s) to ensure that no building materials or debris are placed on or remain 
within the highway during or after the construction period.  

 
Site & Surroundings 
 

1. The Site comprises an agricultural field located off Cold Overton Road to the 
west of the village centre of Langham.  
 

2. The Site covers an area of approximately 3.75 ha (9.3 acres) and consists of a 
single arable field. Sloping from north to south by around 5 metres, the field is 
bounded to the south by a significant hedge on Cold Overton Road; to the west 
by open countryside; and to the north/east by residential properties located within 
Ranksborough Hall and the previously consented scheme for 18 residential 
dwellings (ref. 2020/0380/OUT).  
 

3. The Site is located outside of the “Planned Limits of Development”, as set out in 
the Council’s Development Plan Inset Maps. It is therefore considered as “open 
countryside” in accordance with policy, although it adjoins the existing – and 
consented – built form of the village.  
 

4. The Site is not within the designated Conservation Area for Langham, the 
boundary of which adjoins the previously approved outline site to the east 
although there is nothing of particular historic or architectural interest to the west 
of the A606.  
 

5. The Site is located solely within Flood Zone 1 of the Environment Agency’s Flood 
Risk Maps. Therefore, the Site is assessed as having low risk of flooding (less 
than 1 in 1000 annual probability of river flooding).  

 
6. Overhead lines cross the south west corner of the site and the applicants 

retained adjacent land to the west. 
 
Proposal 
 

7. Members approved an outline application for permission in principle to erect up to 
50 dwellings in 2022 (reference no. 2021/1423/MAO). At the time Council did not 
have a five-year housing supply, and therefore while the site was beyond the 
Planned Limits of Development, Paragraph 11(d) of the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) was engaged.  
 

8. The permission was subject to numerous conditions, including one requiring a 20 

23



metre landscape buffer at the north of the site between the new houses and the 
Ranksborough Hall mobile houses adjacent to the site; 

 
‘Notwithstanding the illustrative Masterplan, the development shall provide 
a minimum 20 metre landscaped buffer to the northern boundary with The 
Glade. No public access shall be allowed in this area. 

 
Reason: To protect the amenities of the residents to the north and to provide 
an area that can be used to contribute to biodiversity and to comply with the 
objective in the submission Langham Neighbourhood Plan.’ 

 
9. The applicant now seeks to amend the wording of condition 24 of that permission, 

reducing the buffer distance from 20 metres, to its original distance of 10 metres 
as it is shown on the illustrative Masterplan. 
 

10. The Masterplan is attached as an Appendix. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
2021/1423/MAO - Erection of up to 50 no. dwellings with associated access, highways, 
open space and drainage infrastructure (all matters reserved except access). – 
Approved 27/09/2022 
 
Planning Guidance and Policy 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2021 
 
Chapter 2 – Achieving Sustainable Development 
Chapter 5 – Delivering a sufficient supply of homes 
Chapter 11 – Making efficient use of land 
Chapter 12 – Achieving well designed places 
 
Site Allocations and Policies DPD (2014) 
 
SP5 - Built Development in the Towns and Villages 
SP6 - Housing in the Countryside 
SP9 - Affordable Housing 
SP15 - Design and Amenity 
SP20 - The Historic Environment 
SP23 - Landscape Character in the Countryside 
 
Core Strategy DPD (2011) 
 
CS03 - The Settlement Hierarchy 
CS04 - The Location of Development 
CS08 - Developer Contributions 
CS10 - Housing Density & Mix 
CS11 - Affordable Housing 
CS19 - Promoting Good Design 
CS22 - The Historic and Cultural Environment 
 

24



Neighbourhood Plan 
 
The Langham Neighbourhood Plan allocated the approved site to the east with which this 
site would share access. The Plan contains the following relevant policies: 

Policy SG1 – Housing Allocation 

Policy SG2 – Meeting Housing Needs 

Policy SG4 – Reducing Flood Risk 

Policy BD1 – Buildings & Materials 

Policy BD2 – Housing Density & Layout 

Policy BD3a – Water Management & Quality 

Policy BD3c – Energy Efficient Construction 

Policy BD4 – Architectural Features 

Policy RS2 Development in the Countryside 

Policy RS5 - Biodiversity 

Policy VC3 – Street Character 

 
Officer Evaluation 
 

11. The main issue is the proposed variation of condition 24, reducing the buffer 
zone from 20m wide, to 10m, taking into account biodiversity and the impact 
upon the residents of the Ranksborough Hall mobile home site to the north. The 
principle of development has been established, and other site-specific issues are 
either conditioned or subject to a Reserved Matters application(s) at a later date. 
 

Variation of condition 24 

12. Paragraph 135 of Section 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2021) 
states that; ‘Local Planning Authorities should seek to ensure that the quality of 
approved development is not materially diminished between permission and 
completion, as a result of changes being made to the permitted scheme.’ 
 

13. The objections from local residents and the Parish are noted, and have been given 
due consideration. The illustrative Masterplan shows a 10 metre buffer zone at the 
top of the site, superseded by condition 24. The 10 metre buffer was the result of 
officer negotiations during the lifetime of that application. However, at Committee 
Members resolved to approve the application subject to including a condition 
increasing the buffer distance beyond 10 metres (with the Council’s Committee 
minutes noting that ‘the applicant had expressed willingness to agree an extension 
beyond the 10 metres to the proposed buffer zone between the north of the site 
and neighbouring Ranksborough mobile homes to address concerns raised by 
local residents’). 
  

25



14. At the time the 2021 application was determined, the Langham Neighbourhood 
Plan was not made, and the ‘submission’ version referenced a 20 metre buffer 
zone, and this informed condition 24. 
 

15. The current planning application states that the reason for the proposed change is 
due to the Langham Neighbourhood Plan not being made at the time of the 
previous approval, and that it has since being amended to remove reference to a 
20 metre buffer zone. The wording of the made Neighbourhood Plan is as follows; 

‘As more sites are considered for development and with the threat of 
Presumption in Favour of Development hanging over our parish, we need 
to protect this community from the noise and disturbance that they moved 
to Ranksborough to avoid. To that end we propose a buffer zone around 
this community where building is banned and people cannot go.’ (Page 24-
25, Item 8). 

16.  Reference to a buffer zone therefore remains in the Neighbourhood Plan, however 
it does not specify a distance. In their consultation response to this application, the 
Parish have stated the reason a 20 metre buffer was not explicitly included was 
due to the National Assessor for the Langham Neighbourhood Plan advising them 
not to include mention of it for this development as the stipulation had already been 
met via the existing permission. This is noted, however the acceptability of a 
reduced buffer distance would rest on whether this would adversely affect 
biodiversity, or the amenity of the adjoining residents, as set out in the reasons for 
the condition. 

Biodiversity 
 

17. LCC Ecology have advised they have no objections to the changing of the wording 
from an ecology perspective. Given this, the biodiversity element of the reason for 
the condition would not be negatively impacted by the proposed change. Their 
comments regarding an updated Biodiversity Net Gain metric are noted, and would 
be dealt with at the Reserved Matters stage. 

Impact on the neighbouring properties 

18. The main neighbouring properties are located on the southern edge of Lodge Park 
at Ranksborough Hall. They are single storey lodges located close to the boundary 
of this site with conservatories and short gardens. 
 

19. Rutland’s Design Guidelines specify a separation distance of 21 metres for back-
to-back two storey buildings. In this case the dwellings along this northern part of 
the site are shown to be bungalows/1.5 storey dwellings, reducing their bulk and 
the potential for overlooking, and therefore would not justify the full ‘two storey’ 
separation distance. Notwithstanding this, while the lodges are close to the 
Ranksborough Hall southern boundary, the distances between buildings (aside 
from plot 5) would still comply with or exceed the ‘two storey’ distance guidance. 
While plot 5 falls short of this, being lower than two storey it would not have an 
unacceptable impact upon the residential amenity of the adjacent properties (and 
its final position could be further into the site as part of the reversed matters 
process). The Design Officer has no objection to a 10 metre buffer zone between 

26



the rear of the Ranksborough Hall site and the garden boundaries of the new 
properties, and it would not be unacceptable from a design or amenity perspective. 

Other Issues 

20. The other conditions imposed on the 2021 permission are still relevant and have 
been carried over. 
 

21. With regard to some objections from local residents, Members are aware that no-
one has a right to a view and whilst the development of the site would be 
disappointing for those on the southern edge of Lodge Park, this is not a reason 
for refusal in itself. Additionally, while there may be some short-term disturbance 
from construction phase, members are also aware this is not a reason for refusal.  
 

22. Clause 16 of the existing Section 106 legal agreement for the development 
provides for Section 73 applications such as the current application to be bound 
by the original agreement. There is therefore no need for a deed of variation in 
terms of the provision of Affordable Housing/open space if Members resolve to 
approve the application. 

Crime and Disorder 

23. It is considered that the proposal would not result in any significant crime and 
disorder implications. 

Human Rights Implications 

24. Articles 6 (Rights to fair decision making) and Article 8 (Right to private family life 
and home) of the Human Rights Act have been taken into account in making this 
recommendation. 

It is considered that no relevant Article of that act will be breached. 

 

Consultations 
 

25. LanghamParish Council 
 
The Parish Council finds this proposal unacceptable, for the reasons which 
follow: 
 
The original planning application 2021/1423/MAO, reviewed by RCC Planning 
Committee on 15.03.2022, included in its supporting documents a site diagram 
showing a proposed 10 metre buffer, and was refused. 
 
The application was reconsidered on 28.04.2022. Item 3 of the Minutes of the 
meeting state, It was noted that the applicant had expressed willingness to agree 
an extension beyond the proposed 10 metres to the proposed buffer zone 
between the north of the site and neighbouring Ranksborough mobile homes to 
address concerns raised by local residents. It was moved by Councillor G Brown 
that the application be approved subject to the conditions in the report and 
addendum, with the incorporation of an expanded buffer zone as a further 
condition to be negotiated and agreed with the applicant. 

27



 
The planning application was approved subject to the Conditions in the report 
and addendum and the incorporation of an expanded buffer zone as a further 
Condition to be agreed with the applicant. Condition Item 24 in the Major Outline 
Permission document for 2021/1423/MAO of 27.09.2022 September 2022 says, 
'Notwithstanding the illustrative Masterplan, the development shall provide a 
minimum 20 metre landscaped buffer to the northern boundary with The Glade. 
No public access shall be allowed in this area.’ 
 
Thus, it is clear from the above that the concept of the importance of a buffer 
zone, was accepted at an early stage in discussions on the development of the 
Cold Overton site, and, further, that this buffer should be of sufficient size to be 
effective: hence the refusal of a 10m buffer zone, and the subsequent 
acceptance of a 20 metre zone. The importance of a substantial buffer zone is 
also recognised, not only from an amenity perspective in relation to the quality of 
life of the age 50+ residents of The Glade, Ranksborough, but also in relation to 
bio-diversity and the 'quality of life' of the plant and animal species that the 
forthcoming housing development will inevitably affect. 
 
The current proposal 2023/0577/FUL for a variation seeks to reverse an 
important contributory item in the approval of planning application 
2021/1423/MAO etc. In his 'to whom it may concern' letter to RCC, dated 
02.06.2023, Andrew Green, Langton Homes planning consultant, offers little 
justification for the proposal, beyond the intention to address what 'the applicant 
believes to be an unreasonable overly excessive landscaped buffer to the 
northern boundary of the site'. No adequate reasons are offered to explain why 
the applicant, having already agreed to a 20-metre buffer zone, now considers 
this to be 'unreasonable' and 'overly excessive', and that it should be reduced by 
50%. 
 
It should also be noted that in his letter Mr Green says that the current, updated 
Langham Neighbourhood Plan of December 2022d makes no mention of the 
buffer zone. The reason for this is specifically because the National Assessor for 
the LNP advised LPC's Planning Committee not to include mention of the 20-
metre buffer zone in relation to the proposed Langton Homes development 
because the stipulation had already been met.  
 
Therefore, Langham Parish Council's view is that the application for variation of 
an already thoroughly considered and accepted Condition is without merit and 
should be refused. 

 
26. Archaeology 

 
Having reviewed the application against the Leicestershire and Rutland Historic 
Environment Record (HER), we do not believe the proposal will result in a 
significant direct or indirect impact upon the archaeological interest or setting of 
any known or potential heritage assets. We would therefore advise that the 
application warrants no further archaeological action (NPPF Section 16, para. 
194-195).  

 
27. Design Officer 

 

28



If the buffer zone was 20m then the front play area etc could get squeezed or the 
site could lose plots – a 10m buffer zone is ok. 

 
28. Ecology 

 
I have no objections to the changing of this wording from an ecology perspective. 
For the Reserved Matters application I will need to see an updated Biodiversity 
Net Gain metric as I can see lots of errors in the existing version (as well as it 
does not seem to match current plans). 

 
29. Highways 

 
No comment - this application does not have any impact on the adopted highway 
or traffic generation 
 

30.  Housing Strategy 
 
If this is to be approved, a replacement section 106 agreement or Deed of 
Variation may be needed to ensure continued validity. Legal advice should be 
sought by the Case Officer. 

 
31. PROW Officer 

 
No impact on PROW network 
 

32. Forestry Officer 
 
No objection 
 

33. Anglian Water 
 
There is no connection to the Anglian Water sewers, we therefore have no 
comments. 
 

34. NHS Leicester & Rutland CCG 
 
The Section 73 for Variation of Condition does not change the number of 
dwellings on planning application 2021/1423/MAO, therefore the ICB does not 
have further comment.  

 
35. Leicestershire Police Architectural liaison Officer 

 
I am writing to you in my capacity as the Leicestershire Police Designing out 
Crime Officer (DOCO). Leicestershire Police have no formal objections in 
principle to the application however we would like to make the following 
observations.  
 
In relation to the Section 73 for Variation of Condition No. 24 (Landscaped Buffer 
to the Northern Boundary with The Glade) on planning permission ref: 
2021/1423/MAO (Erection of up to 50 no. dwellings with associated access, 
highways, open space, and drainage infrastructure (all matters reserved except 
access)). The variation will reduce the minimum landscaped buffer from 20m to 

29



10m.  
 
Land On The North Side Of Cold Overton Road, Langham, Rutland.  
 
I have now visited, and have reviewed the proposed development. There is a 
vehicle entry point at Cold Overton Road to the south east of the site where an 
access road leads westward to allow access to all dwellings within the 
development. There are no through routes with three turning points or 
hammerhead turning points allow access to dwellings but no through routes. 
Emergency Services access is appropriate for a site of this size in my opinion.  
To the south west side there is open space which abuts farm land to the west. 
There is further open land and water attenuation to the south east corner. The 
remaining open space is in the central core of the development or to the north 
east near to the completed phase 1.  
 
Lighting recommendations are to illuminate the main vehicle entry point and 
walkways as well as open space and any other key areas to BS5489.  
 
Vehicle parking is in curtilage to dwellings within the development and I would 
recommend consideration of gable end windows where possible to increase the 
possibility of natural observation available. There are no communal parking in 
within the development so illumination should be concentrated near to dwellings 
or any recreational areas.  
 
A Section 38 Agreement is recommended to install an electrical spur to the 
nearest lamppost to the junction to site the CCTV camera.  
 
CCTV coverage of the area should include the vehicle access point with the 
capability to capture number plate images. Appropriate Data Compliant signage 
is recommended should this be required but I recommend consideration of it after 
occupation due to the size and scale. 
 
Wheelie bin storage and cycles should be stored in secure areas where possible 
to avoid the potential for criminal use, as a ladder, mode of removal or arson risk 
for bins or mode of escape in respect to cycles.  
 
Foliage is recommended to be to a height of 1m and trees are recommended to 
be trimmed to have no foliage lower than 2m from the ground. This will provide a 
1m clear field of vision. Perimeter enclosure is recommended to be to a height of 
1.2m at the front and 1.8m to sides and the rear in a material in keeping with the 
development.  
 
General Recommendations  
 
All door and window sets will be to PAS24 (2022) which is now included in 
building regulations. There are other considerations such as BS 6375 Security 
Locking and Fire Security and BS EN 50486 in relation to Audio and Video door 
entry systems. Consideration should be made to identify the most appropriate 
option for this site. Dwellings are recommended to have an Alarm System to 
BS7958, but there are other options on the Secured by Design portal which 
include BS6799 in relation to wire free alarm systems. Also, BS EN 50131 and 
PD 6662 in relation to wired systems.  

30



 
1. Street lighting columns to BS 5489 are recommended.  
2. Appropriate fencing should be used to enclose the perimeter and is 
recommended to be 1.8m in height. This can be via planting or manufactured 
fencing.  
3. Key access points leading into the development should be considered for 
CCTV coverage supported by lighting to allow identification during day and night. 
This would allow vehicle and facial recognition in key areas. Appropriate signage 
should be in place to be compliant with the Data Protection Act.  
4. Natural surveillance should be possible via ground level foliage being trimmed 
to 1m high and trees to have no foliage lower than 2m from the ground to allow a 
clear field of vision.  
5. Vehicular parking is recommended to be in curtilage as part of the dwellings 
where possible. Communal parking should be supported by natural observation, 
lighting and be set in clearly defined areas to deter unauthorised access.  
6. Consideration of Secured by Design principles is recommended and 
information in respect to the different standards is available on request.  
7. Opportunities to explore the potential for S106/CIL funding should be 
undertaken with relevant parties if appropriate and will increase the demand on 
Policing within the area of the development.  
8. Dwellings are recommended to have an Alarm System to BS7958 with 
coverage of garages included where applicable.  
9. Commercial sites may benefit from smoke cloaking devices to deter access 
and reduce potential loss.  
10. An electrical spur is recommended under a section 38 agreement at each 
vehicular entry point leading into the development.  
11. Consideration of Park Mark accreditation should be considered in the event 
of appropriate communal parking within the application.  
12. Consideration of Safe Routes through open space and walkways should 
account for the use of women and girls 

 
Neighbour Representations 
 

36. Nine objections have been received from local residents. The objections are 
summarised as follows: 

 
• Loss of view and tranquillity 
• 20m corridor should be upheld to keep privacy and countryside 
• Impact on mental health of Ranksborough Hall residents 
• Disturbance during construction 
• Loss of biodiversity/impact on bats 
• Light pollution  
• Suggested compromise of 15m buffer 
• Height of boundary fence should be increased to 2 metres 
• Seeks to change a key part of what made the previous application acceptable 

 
In addition to this, one local resident has questioned the purpose of the buffer zone for 
the benefit of the Ranksborough Hall residents and how it would be maintained. 
 
Conclusion 

31



 
37. The 10 metre buffer zone originally proposed by the development is considered to 

be acceptable. It would provide acceptable separation distances between the new 
and existing dwellings, and would not adversely affect the biodiversity of the wildlife 
corridor. The overall quality of the development would not be materially diminished 
as a result of the change, and would not be contrary to the aims and objectives of 
the National Planning Policy Framework (2021), the Adopted Core Strategy 
(2011), the Site Allocations & Policies Development Plan Document (2014), the 
Design Guidelines for Rutland & South Kesteven: Supplementary Planning 
Document (2021), or the Langham Neighbourhood Plan (2022). 

 

32



2023/0577/FUL -Appendix 1

33

rpedley
Cross-Out



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
REPORT NO: 120/2023 

 

PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
22nd August 2023 

 

APPEALS 

 
Report of the Strategic Director of Places 

 

Strategic Aim: Delivering Sustainable Development 

Exempt Information No 

Cabinet Member Responsible: Councillor Paul Browne - Portfolio Holder for Planning 
and Property 

Contact 
Officer(s): 

Penny Sharp, Strategic Director of 
Places  

Tel: 01572 758160 

psharp@rutland.gov.uk 

 

 Justin Johnson, Development 
Control Manager 

Tel: 01572 720950 

jjohnson@rutland.gov.uk  

 

Ward Councillors All 

 
 

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the Committee notes the contents of this report 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  
 
1.1. This report lists for Members’ information the appeals received since the  last 

meeting of the Planning & Licensing Committee and summarises the decisions 
made. 

 
2. APPEALS LODGED SINCE LAST MEETING 
 
2.1 APP/A2470/W/23/3323343 – Mr and Mrs Semple – 2022/1150/FUL 
 Land to the Rear of 37 Cold Overton Road, Oakham 
 2 New Bungalows in rear garden of 37 Cold Overton Road, Oakham, Rutland LE15 

6NT 
 Appeal against Refusal 

35

Agenda Item 6



 The  proposed new dwellings and garages would result in a cramped form of 
development and would by virtue of their scale, design and form in relation to 
their location show little regard for any local distinctiveness and result in 
backland development and would appear as an incongruous element in its 
landscape setting, dominating views from the surrounding area and 
neighbouring land uses, failing to provide adequate enhanced biodiversity 
and demonstrate that existing hedgerow along the site boundaries can be 
retained. Taking the above into account, it is considered that the development 
would be contrary to Policies  CS19 of the Adopted Core Strategy 
Development Plan Document (2011), and Policies SP5 and SP15 of the Site 
Allocations Development Plan Document (2014), Sections 5, and 12  of the 
NPPF (2021), The Design Guidelines for Rutland (SPD), The National Design 
Guide, 2021. and Polices 1 and 2 of the Oakham and Barleythorpe 
Neighbourhood Plan. 

 
 The existing vehicle access is in close proximity to existing residential 

property and would extend for a significant way along of the length of the 
existing garden area . It is considered that any increase in vehicular 
movements as a result a of the proposed new dwellings would have an 
adverse impact on the amenities of the properties known as No 35 and No 37 
Cold Overton Road by reason of increased noise, vibration and general 
disturbance. The location of the new dwellings are also in close proximity of 
the eastern boundary will have an adverse impact on the residential amenities 
of No 35 Cold Overton Road by reason of loss of light and overshadowing of 
the rear garden area and is therefore considered to be contrary to planning 
policies CS19 of the adopted Core Strategy (2011) and SP5 and SP15 of the 
Site Allocations and Polices Development Plan Document (2014), Section 12 
of the NPPF (2021),  Design Guidelines for Rutland (SPD), The National Design 
Guide, 2021and Polices 1 and 2 of the Oakham and Barleythorpe 
Neighbourhood Plan. 

 
 The proposed access to the site is inadequate and below the standard 

required by reason of substandard geometry including orientation. As a 
consequence, the manoeuvring of vehicles likely to be generated by the 
proposed development would have an adverse effect on the safety of users 
of the adjoining public highway. This is contrary to Policy SP15 in the Adopted 
Rutland Local Plan Site Allocations & Policies DPD 2014. Section 9 NPPF 
(2021) Design Guidelines for Rutland (SPD),The National Design Guide, 2021 
and Polices 1 and 2 of the Oakham and Barleythorpe Neighbourhood Plan 

 Insufficient details have been provided to demonstrate a fire engine would not 
have to reverse more than 20m onto Cold Overton Road, or that other delivery 
vehicles associated with the existing and proposed residential uses could 
enter and leave the site in forward gear. Large vehicles not being able to leave 
the site in forward gear would be detrimental to Highway Safety. As such, the 
proposal would be unable to provide a safe access, contrary to planning 
policies SP5 (c) and SP15 (I) of the Site Allocations and Polices Development 
Plan Document (2014), Design Guidelines for Rutland (SPD), Section 9,  
paragraph 112(d) of the National Planning Policy Framework (2021) and 
Polices 1 and 2 of the Oakham and Barleythorpe Neighbourhood Plan 

 

36



 Insufficient details have been provided to demonstrate a fire engine would not 
have to reverse more than 20m onto Cold Overton Road, or that other delivery 
vehicles associated with the existing and proposed residential uses could 
enter and leave the site in forward gear. Large vehicles not being able to leave 
the site in forward gear would be detrimental to Highway Safety. As such, the 
proposal would be unable to provide a safe access, contrary to planning 
policies SP5 (c) and SP15 (I) of the Site Allocations and Polices Development 
Plan Document (2014), Design Guidelines for Rutland (SPD), Section 9,  
paragraph 112(d) of the National Planning Policy Framework (2021) and 
Polices 1 and 2 of the Oakham and Barleythorpe Neighbourhood Plan 

 
3. DECISIONS 

 
3.1 APP/A2470/D/3318823 – Ms J Dodman – 2022/1289/FUL 
 Serendene, 16 Cold Overton Road, Langham, Rutland, LE15 7JG 
 Resubmission of planning application 2022/0469/FUL - Proposed bungalow 

alterations and extension including detached garage. 
 Delegated Decision 

Appeal Dismissed – 28th July 2023 
 

3.2 APP/A2470/W/23/3314473 - Mr & Mrs Mark Hollingsworth – 2022/0310/FUL 
 Land South of Langham Road, Ashwell, Rutland 
 1 no. dwelling including demolition of privy and sheds. 

Delegated Decision 
Appeal Dismissed – 28th July 2023     
 

3.3      APP/A2470/W/22/3312763 – N Beers (Bowbridge Land Ltd) 
 Main Road, Barleythorpe, Rutland 

Outline planning application for up to 150 residential dwellings (Class C3), with all 
matters reserved except for access for the development of land off Main Road, 
Barleythorpe.   
Delegated Decision 
Appeal Dismissed – 9 August 2023                   
        

4 APPEALS AGAINST ENFORCEMENTS LODGED SINCE LAST MEETING 
 
4.1 None 
 
5. ENFORCEMENT DECISIONS  
 
5.1 None 
 
6.       CONSULTATION  

 
    6.1 None 

 
7.       ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS   
 
7.1 Alternatives have not been considered as this is an information report 
 
8.        FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

37



 
8.1 None  
 
9.        LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS  

 
9.1 As this is only a report for noting it has not needed to address authority,   powers 

and duties. 
 

10.      EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT  
 

  10.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has not been completed for the    following 
reason; because there are no relevant service, policy or organisational changes 
being proposed. 

 
11. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS  

 
11.1 There are no such implications. 

 
 

12.      HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS 
 

12.1 There are no such implications 
 

13. CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE 
RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
13.1 This report gives details of decisions received since the last meeting for    noting. 
 
14.      BACKGROUND PAPERS  

 
14.1 There are no such implications 

 
15.      APPENDICES  
 
15.1 None 
     
 

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available 
upon request – Contact 01572 722577.  
      
        
  
 

38


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	5 PLANNING APPLICATIONS
	Declaring interests at meetings
	Selflessness
	Integrity
	Objectivity
	Accountability
	Openness
	Honesty & Integrity
	Leadership
	INDEX
	Index of Committee Items


	5a 2023/0577/FUL
	2023-0577-FUL - Report
	2023-0577-FUL - LANG - AWB - Appendix - Masterplan
	Page 1


	6 APPEALS REPORT

